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TOGETHER 
FOR HEALTH

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia acknowledges the 
Traditional Owners of Country throughout Australia 
and the Torres Strait Islands. We recognise their 
continuing connection to lands, waters and 
communities. We acknowledge that these lands 
have been materially, ecologically and socially 
transformed through occupation by settlers and 
we acknowledge that this transformation does not 
erase history, sovereignty or continuing connections 
to culture. We acknowledge the work undertaken 
by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people, 
for health and justice. We pay our respects to 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Elders who came 
before, those that lead now and those who will lead 
in the future.

Acknowledgement 
of Country

We pay our respects and offer our deep thanks 
to those who have worked to improve the health 
and wellbeing of LGBTIQ+ communities. We honour 
both people and organisations, in the diverse 
communities of which we are a part, and the work 
they have done to make our work and lives possible. 
We celebrate the extraordinary diversity of people’s 
bodies, genders, sexualities and relationships that 
they represent. Thank you for having the courage to 
be yourself and for your efforts to improve the health 
& wellbeing of our communities across the lifespan.

Honouring LGBTIQ+ 
people & Communities

Contacts

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
WeWork, 100 Harris St, Sydney NSW 2009

info@lgbtiqhealth.org.au 
www.lgbtiqhealth.org.au

Principal Funders

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia gratefully 
acknowledges the support of the Australian 
Government Department of Health.
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About LGBTIQ+ 
Health Australia

Our Vision 

Healthy lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans/transgender, 
intersex, and other sexuality, gender and bodily 
diverse people and communities throughout 
Australia and the world free from stigma and 
discrimination. LGBTIQ+ Health Australia is the 
national peak health organisation in Australia for 
organisations and individuals that provide 
health-related programs, services and research 
focused on lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, 
and intersex people (LGBTIQ+) and other sexuality, 
gender and bodily diverse people and communities.

Our Mission 

Our particular mission is to provide a national focus 
to improve health outcomes for LGBTIQ+ people 
through policy, advocacy, represenation, research 
evidence, and capacity building.

We are committed to:

  
Respecting the dignity, views 
and experience of all people 

 
Leading by example by 
providing a work environment 
that embraces diversity

 
 

Valuing diversity and promoting 
the equality of all people

 
Undertaking activities to the 
highest professional standards

 
Working to end violence in 
all it’s forms.79

Acknowledgement
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REPORT 
FROM CHAIR

Report from Chair

As Chair of LGBTIQ+ Health Australia, and on behalf of 
the Board, I am proud to provide this Chair report for 
the 2020/21 year.
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Leading the work of LGBTIQ+ Health 
Australia through 2020/21 in the midst of a 
prolonged global pandemic has not been 
without its challenges, and our communities 
have not remained untouched. My fellow 
Board Directors and I have been honoured 
to work alongside the operational team 
through this unique period to support the 
organisation’s mission and strategic goals.

The arrival of the novel coronavirus 
SARS-CoV-2 to Australia in early 2020 
saw dramatic shifts in the way we live and 
connect, and how we work to find meaning 
in our day-to-day lives. We know that 
our LGBTIQ+ communities were already 
disproportionately impacted by higher 
rates of mental distress and ill-health prior 
to the pandemic. The continued social 
upheaval, disruptions and dislocations of 
the last year however, have manifested in 
record numbers of community members 
seeking support and connection through 
our work and through connection with our 
membership organisations. 

This year, our membership organisations 
have continued to lead the critical 
community response to the COVID-19 
pandemic, and LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
has continued the important work of 
coordinating the national voice for this work 
across the multitude of health domains that 
impact on LGBTIQ+ people’s lives. This work 
will continue into 2021/22 and for as long as 
is needed, as we collectively work towards 
a new COVID-normal in which the health 
and wellbeing needs of our communities are 
acknowledged and addressed.

A key focus area for the Board this year 
has been to steer LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
through the finalisation and launch of 
both the new strategic plan (2021-23) and 
organisational rebrand. Our Strategic Plan 
2021-2023 provides a cohesive national 
approach to LGBTIQ+ health and outlines 
our ambitions for a stronger, improved and 
focused national peak for LGBTIQ+ health 
right across Australia. 

The new strategic plan, rebrand and vision 
for the organisation supports our role as 
the peak organisation for LGBTIQ+ Health 
nationally, and sets out our values, purpose 
and vision. Informed by our values, our 
strategic plan articulates how we work 
and outlines four key pillars to scaffold and 
focus our national work through 2021-2023. 
Following a consultation process with 
members and staff, the Board confirmed 
the change from the National LGBTI Health 
Alliance to the new organisational name 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia. This change was 
made to better reflect LGBTIQ+ Health 
Australia’s aspirations and plans for national 
focus on our communities’ health and 
stronger action to overcome the significant 
health disparities that continue to exist for 
LGBTIQ+ people.

The opening up of a new federal 
government grant round for national health 
peak groups and advisory bodies this year 
has provided another opportunity to anchor 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia as the national 
voice for LGBTIQ+ health. With funding 
being granted for 3 years commencing 
July 2022, LGBTIQ+ Health Australia has 
submitted a comprehensive tender into the 
grant round. Success in this endeavour will 
provide significant funding and resources 
into the organisation. The outcome of this 
submission will be known late 2021 and the 
Board and Executive team are hopeful 
of a positive outcome and recognition of 
the importance of our work in addressing 
LGBTIQ+ health inequity. 

Pleasingly, even with the challenges brought 
by the coronavirus pandemic, LGBTIQ+ 
Health Australia has continued to grow and 
strengthen its financial position over the 
past 12 months. 
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The organisation’s revenue increased by 
14.6% and unrestricted reserves increased 
by 27.3%, which is a significant achievement. 
There has also been further work completed 
by the Chief Executive Officer, staff 
and Purpose Accounting (our financial 
contractor) in strengthening the financial 
management and reporting systems in the 
organisation. This work has been overseen 
by the Finance, Audit and Risk Management 
(FARM) committee. I am confident this work 
has left LGBTIQ+ Health Australia in a strong 
fiscal position for the future.

It is important to acknowledge the work 
of the Chief Executive Officer, her senior 
leadership team and staff over the last year. 
Their work has been undertaken tirelessly, 
and with passion, dedication and integrity. 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia is only as strong 
as its operational staff and I am confident 
we have the right skills mix, experience and 
structures to support ongoing success in 
delivering on our strategic plan.  To provide 
an expert LGBTIQ+ lens, the Chief Executive 
Officer has recently been appointed to 
the Australian National Advisory Council 
on Alcohol and other Drugs, and to 
the Ministerial Advisory Committee on 
STIs and BBVs. Coupled with these new 
appointments, the organisation maintains 
a number of standing roles on advisory 
structures across the broad range of 
areas of LGBTIQ+ health disparity. These 
appointments and positions demonstrate 
the recognised strong leadership of LGBTIQ+ 
Health Australia and the knowledge and 
expertise held within the organisation across 
all areas of LGBTIQ+ health. 

To our members, I express my thanks for 
your commitment and engagement with 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia this year. The 
wellbeing of LGBTIQ+ people right across 
our nation is at the heart of all we do. Our 
collective efforts can, and do, result in 
positive change to the health outcomes of 
our communities and I am deeply grateful 
for your work and expertise. I look forward to 
strengthening the membership, membership 
benefits and engagement with you into 
2021/22.

In many ways it has been an extraordinary 
year and these are certainly unpredictable 
times. Despite the many challenges, the 
work of LGBTIQ+ Health Australia throughout 
the year has created a strong foundation for 
us to respond to whatever the year ahead 
brings and will ensure that our communities’ 
health and wellbeing continues to be 
championed. I look forward to walking 
with you.

Carolyn Gillespie 
Chair 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia
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Report from 
Chief Executive Officer

I write this CEO report from the confines 
of my spare bedroom with my dog Fern 
at my feet. This time last year there was 
much optimism for 2021 being better, with 
fewer restrictions and the hope of travel 
and movement. Delta was not in our sights 
and here we are with so many of us in 
lockdown watching ever changing case and 
vaccination numbers. 

It is incredible to reflect on the past year 
from the perspective of this amazing 
organisation, with our wonderful members 
battling such great adversities to ensure 
the delivery of much needed programs 
and services, with demand growing by 
the day. Determination and perseverance 
are in abundance across our member 
organisations, and I hope that having 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia at their side has 
been supportive and valued.

For LGBTIQ+ Health Australia, the year 
has been immensely challenging and 
rewarding. Ongoing staffing changes and 
the development of our new organisational 
structure has  proven to yield solid results, 
and we are stronger than ever. 
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With program growth into palliative care 
and disability, sexual violence prevention, 
and research into the impacts of COVID-19 
on our communities, we have seen our 
partnerships and leadership flourish. I 
remain honoured to work with dedicated, 
professional, and inspirational people who 
always have our communities in their hearts 
and achieve so much. 

Launching our new Strategic Plan 2021 
– 2023 has cemented our core values, 
purpose and vision and provides further 
clarity on what we do and how we 
approach our work. Being transparent and 
respectful is critical, and if and when we trip 
up along the way, we do so with humility 
and a curiosity to learn. Our Strategic Plan 
outlines how we will continue to build a 
united and strong community-controlled 
health sector, and these attributes hold us 
in good stead. 
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Our name change from the National LGBTI 
Health Alliance to LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
was important as was the subtle changes 
to our branding and logo, demonstrating 
the breadth of the communities we serve. 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia remains a critical 
and unique peak body in LGBTIQ+ health 
and our members are central to what we do 
and the changes we have made this year.
And if that wasn’t enough change, 
we also strengthened our member 
classifications and member offerings and 
I really look forward to our monthly full 
member Leadership Roundtable which is 
gaining momentum. 

When I look back on the year so much 
jumps out at me. While the 2021 Census 
did not result in us being counted on the 
night of 10 August 2021, the release of the 
Australian Bureau of Statistics Standard for 
Sex, Gender, Variation of Sex Characteristics 
and Sexual Orientation Variables, 2020, 
https://www.lgbtiqhealth.org.au/new_
australian_bureau_of_statistics_2020_
standard was a really important 
achievement and we are working hard to 
get this embedded in health and wellbeing 
sector data sets so we can benefit as soon 
as possible from the data these questions 
will provide. I think back to our incredible 
online 11th Health in Difference and 5th LGBTI 
Ageing and Aged Care conferences which 
were such brilliant online extravaganzas 
that brought a fresh approach and greater 
partnerships. The communiques from the 
conferences are available here: 
https://www.lgbtiqhealth.org.au/health_in_
difference_conference_communique_2021
and here: https://www.lgbtiqhealth.org.au/
lgbti_ageing_and_aged_care_conference_
communique

It was an honour to represent our 
communities this year in various settings. 
Sitting on the Expert Advisory Group to 
Christine Morgan in her role as the Prime 
Minister’s National Suicide Prevention 
Adviser and Taskforce was significant for 
me personally and for our communities. 
And last but by no means least, the launch 
of our 2021 Policy Priorities in Canberra 
with the support of the Parliamentary 
Friendship Group for LGBTIQ Australians 
was an important milestone for LGBTIQ+ 
Health Australia and keeps us focused as 
we hold up and address the priorities for 
our members.

Thanks to everyone I have worked with, 
met with, and learned from this year, to 
the Board of Governance and staff, the 
Commonwealth Government for ongoing 
support of much needed national programs 
and our outstanding members.

There are many great achievements this 
year on the following pages of this Report, 
so get a cuppa, get comfy and enjoy. Our 
successes are your successes.

Nicky Bath 
Chief Executive Officer 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia
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Together For Health

Visibility and Communication

We work to ensure our members’ and 
communities’ voices are represented and 
heard at a national level.

Shared Resources and Training

We provide a range of member offerings to 
improve greater inclusion and collaboration
between members, including a members 
portal, digital branding, newsletters, 
webinars and established Health In 
Difference and LGBTI Ageing Conferences.

Collaborative Research

We support research that addresses 
the needs and vulnerabilities of our 
communities. Our research and reports 
are consistently our most accessed 
website content.

Capacity Building

We develop the capacity for organisations, 
services and programs to be inclusive of and 
to celebrate our communities.

Policy and Advocacy

We provide policy submissions and 
advocate at the Federal level to ensure 
that our communities are represented in 
policy and health and wellbeing decisions. 
Our work has substantially increased the
representation and funding available
for LGBTIQ health and wellbeing 
organisations and programs since 
our inception.

National Program Coordination

We coordinate several national programs 
with the support of our member 
organisations and communities. Those 
programs span across mental health and
suicide prevention, ageing and aged 
care, disability, and palliative care. 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia is also engaged 
in developing support for programs 
and services across all areas where our 
communities experience significant health 
and wellbeing disparities; for example drug 
and alcohol, domestic and family violence, 
intimate partner violence and sexual 
assault, and cancer.

We achieve this through a highly 
experienced and passionate team, who are 
committed to ensuring the best possible 
outcomes for the communities we represent.
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FOR HEALTH

Our members are central to the work that we do 
to help improve the health & wellbeing of LGBTIQ+ 
people throughout Australia. The diversity and 
dynamism of our members ensures innovative 
collaborations and dynamic cross-sector partnerships.

AT A GLANCE
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At a glance

LGBTIQ+ Health 
Australia Website

QLife

105,449
Visitors

278,417
Total page views

81,953
Vistors

Most visited pages 
on LGBTIQ+ Health 
Australia

49,745
Statistics

45,557
Homepage

5,708
Silver Rainbow

Most visited pages 
on QLife

94,054
Homepage

15,919
Resources

16,362
About us

i
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Silver Rainbow

142
Face-to-face training sessions

14,112
Online training sessions

Mindout

800
Webinar viewers

5,864
Resources accessed
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MINDOUT

Policy and Research

During this year, we facilitated the inclusion 
of LGBTIQ+ populations at a national level 
in policy, research, and engaged with a 
Trans and Gender Advisory Group. We have 
also established the framework for a Peer 
Expert Advisory Groups as well as Sector 
Professional Advisory Group to support 
the program.
 
Working with member organisations we 
completed and presented the LGBTIQ+ 
Health and Wellbeing Priorities 2021. 
This was  launched at a forum for the 
Parliamentary Friendship Group for 
LGBTIQ+ Australians and focused on 
data and research integrity, collaborative 
action planning, and the importance of 
community-controlled organisations 
in planning. 

Submissions were also made to a number 
of National Strategies including the Mental 
Health Commission, and we supported the 
evaluation of the National Suicide and 
Self-Harm Monitoring system in February. 
 
We worked alongside key suicide prevention 
organisations nation-wide including Suicide 
Prevention Australia, R U OK?, Beyond Blue, 
and Blackdog, and participated in advisory 
groups including proving support to the 
National LGBTIQ+ Health and Wellbeing 
Research Network.

Established in 2011, Mindout is Australia’s National LGBTI Mental Health and 
Suicide Prevention Program.

This year we focused on opportunities for leadership 
and collaboration, and sought ways to highlight 
member initiatives to work towards shared goals 
as our communities continued to navigate through 
COVID-19. We worked to build connections and 
foster our relationships across community controlled 
and mainstream organisations to support sector 
development and increase opportunities for capacity 
building, as well as moved to provide training and 
mentorship with Mindout community Champions. 
Working with higher program resource capacity 
including a Coordinator and Project Officer, we are set 
for a dynamic and exciting leap into the next stages 
of MindOut.

MINDOUT

Health in Difference Conference

We delivered the Health in Difference 
Conference in April over three consecutive 
Fridays, bringing together community 
members, community organisations large 
and small, health practitioners, researchers, 
academics, policymakers, advocates, and 
others who are interested in improving the 
mental, physical and emotional wellbeing of 
LGBTIQ+ people.

The Conference sessions included sessions 
focused on Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander mental health, alcohol and other 
drugs, international perspectives on 
LGBTIQ+ issues, and disability and inclusion 
sessions amongst many others. 

The conference use innovative networking 
tools to gather together and provide space 
for stakeholders to meet, share ideas, and 
link up with others on a national scale; such 
an important part of supporting LGBTIQ+ 
communities in the time of COVID-19.

Champions Project

The Mindout Champions Project continued 
and expanded capacity over the last year. 
Champions is a mentoring and peer support 
program working with mainstream mental 
health organisations to be responsive to the 
well-being needs of LGBTIQ+ service users 
and staff. 

Monthly meetings continued along with 
one-on-one support, and we ran induction 
training online to which all members 
participated including both state based 
and national participants.  

All organisations received a hard copy 
resource pack including the newly 
developed Resource Pack which included 
the newly developed Champions Workbook, 
further supporting increased capacity 
building opportunities on local an 
national scales. 
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685
Registered

Mental Health and 
Suicide  Prevention 
Training-Online 
E-Modules 

95
Webinar viewers 

Website Statistics

3,833
Newsletter subscribers

5,234
PDF Downloads
Resources accessed

14,740
Snapshot

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
Annual Report 2020-2021

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
Annual Report 2020-2021



QLife

17

QLIFE

QLife services are free and include both 
telephone and webchat support, delivered 
by trained LGBTI community members 
across the country.

QLife is funded by the Australian 
Government and operates as a unique 
partnership model. LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
is the contract holder and provides support 
and national coordination with four 
state-based partner organisations who 
deliver the services with the support of a 
team of vital and passionate volunteers. 
Our partners are Diverse Voices in QLD, 
Living Proud in WA, Switchboard in Vic and 
Twenty10 (inc GLCS) in NSW.

QLife Data

After the introduction of our new server, 
we have further improved the accuracy 
of the data that is made available. This 
is provided to QLife partners to allow for 
a stronger understanding of the service 
and to implement localised strategies to 
ensure that the service can continue to 
run effectively.

We are now able to ascertain which state 
contacts are calling from, which partner site 
answers the call, and are able to quickly 
understand the data that is collected 
through our phone and webchat systems. 
This has assisted in resourcing and planning 
for the future, particularly in strengthening 
our understanding of how COVID-19 has 
impacted LGBTIQ+ communities, and more 
about why people contact us. 

Why do people contact QLife?

There have been some significant thematic 
narratives that we have been able to 
grasp from data that has been collected, 
telling us an important story about who 
is contacting, current issues presenting in 
LGBTIQ+ communities, and can provide 
information about training opportunities for 
Peer Supporters. 

We know that for young people contacting 
QLife, webchats have been the main form 
of connecting with the service, exploring key 
topics such as gender and sexual identity 
with an increase in the topic of family 
relationships as parts of Australia headed 
into lockdown. 

More broadly, loneliness and isolation remain 
the key areas of discussion as well as a 
strong focus of support seeking around 
mental health concerns. 

Notes from QLife

QLife started a free SMS service that 
anyone from the community can sign up to 
and receive texts twice per week that are 
designed to help people stay connected. 
There have been 65 sign ups and this 
continues to rise. 

The messages provide those who have 
signed up with reminders about self-care, 
highlights on fantastic work happening 
in the community, days of significance, 
LGBTIQ+ history, and key supports that 
are available.

QLife provides anonymous, LGBTIQ+ peer support 
and referral for people in Australia wanting to talk 
about a range of issues including sexuality, identity, 
gender, bodies, feelings or relationships.

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
Annual Report 2020-2021

COVID-19 additional funding

In 2020, we received additional funds from 
the Department of Health to assist our 
communities experiencing COVID-19. 
The funds were used for the following:
• Social media campaign – community 

Champions posted messages of 
positive health and wellbeing, by 
sharing their self-care practices. The 
campaign provided a platform to 
engage with multiple demographics, 
including a broad age spectrum, 
geographic locations and reach 
isolated populations. 

• SMS project – we extended service 
delivery to include regular wellbeing 
messages through SMS contact.

• Psychosocial online groups - 
conversation support spaces to discuss 
topics around managing school, 
work and other living with COVID-19 
related topics; general health, mental 
health, wellbeing and self-care; referral 
information and other support topics 
relevant to LGBTIQ+ people.

• Increased access to QLife phone and 
Teleweb services.

Culturally and Linguistically Diverse training

We partnered with Australian GBLITQ 
Multicultural Council to develop LGBTIQ+ 
training targeted to CALD inclusive practice 
for Teleweb services. The training was 
focused on:
• Understanding family relations from a 

multicultural perspective/s
• Intersectionality and LGBTI CALD 

identities 
• Creating a culturally safe environment 

based on inclusive practice principles
• What is conscious and unconscious 

bias?
• Understanding CALD perspectives on 

sexual and gender diversity 
• Improving the mental health and 

wellbeing of LGBTIQ people affiliated 
with diverse cultural and faith-based 
communities 

ANZ Bank donation

During the month of Mardi Gras, we received 
a very generous donation from ANZ Bank to 
support people feeling isolated in remote 
locations. This donation increased our 
phone and Teleweb capacity.

QLIFE
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20Compared to last financial 
year, the following topics 
of discussion have 
experienced an increase 
in occurrence.

23,143
Phone calls

QLife Support 
Statistics

9,433
Webchats

Website Statistics

76,987
Website visitors

79,565
Homepage

13,294
About us

i

+49%
Suicidal or Self- Harm Ideation

+35%
Domestic or Family Violence

+86%
Crisis and/or Immediate Distress

+47%
Mental Health Issues

+47%
Referral for Counselling/ 
Support Service
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SILVER 
RAINBOW

Australia was the first country to have a 
National LGBTI Ageing and Aged Care 
Strategy. This combined with other legal 
reforms has resulted in the ageing and aged 
care sector being increasingly focused 
on inclusive practice. The final report from 
the Royal Commission into Aged Care 
Quality and Safety was also handed down 
in February 2021 and the Silver Rainbow 
program will continue to evolve and 
adapt as these recommendations are 
implemented across the sector.

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia provides national 
coordination and leadership through our 
state and territory Silver Rainbow Partners to 
train aged care workers in inclusive practices 
and build the capacity of organisations to 
meet the needs of LGBTIQ+ elders. We work 
closely with our Policy and Research team 
to engage government, policy makers and 
other peak bodies to advocate for systemic 
change to uphold the rights of LGBTIQ+ 
elders to access culturally safe aged care 
services on an equal basis with others in 
the community.

Our Silver Rainbow Partners 2020/2021

Our programs continue to be rolled out 
nationally through our committed state and 
territory Partners:
• Council of the Aged South Australia - 

COT SA
• GBLTI Rights in Ageing Inc - GRAI (WA)
• Meridian - formerly AIDS Action Council 

(ACT)
• Northern Territory AIDS & Hepatitis 

Council - NTAHC
• Queensland Council for LGBTI Health - 

formerly Queensland AIDS Council
• Transgender Victoria - TGV
• Working it Out (TAS)
 
In 2020, we also welcomed our new Silver 
Rainbow Partner in NSW, Twenty10.

Historically, LGBTI people have a shared experience of discrimination and 
prejudice with many LGBTI elders having experienced violence, isolation and stigma 
throughout their lives. Elders may not feel safe to disclose their identities or histories to 
service providers and often remain invisible in the aged care sector and broader community. 
This experience can be described as ‘returning to the closet’ and has profound negative 
impacts on the mental health and wellbeing of LGBTI elders. Much work is still needed to 
meet the health and wellbeing needs of LGBTI elders.

The Silver Rainbow project aims to improve the 
experiences of LGBTI people as they age and enter the 
Australian aged care system.
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SILVER 
RAINBOW

22Training and Capacity Development

COVID-19 had a significant impact on the 
delivery of the Silver Rainbow program with 
aged care facilities being severely impacted 
by health orders and restrictions in many 
states and territories. This required our 
Silver Rainbow Partners to adapt quickly to 
delivering online training and find creative 
capacity building solutions to engage with 
aged care services. This was a significant 
challenge with many aged care services 
limiting access to their facilities with some 
Partners more easily able to pivot to 
online training than others. Despite this, a 
total of 39 trainings were delivered across 
metropolitan, regional, rural and remote 
locations nationally.

This year has seen a significant repositioning 
of the Silver Rainbow program to focus 
on capacity building of aged care 
organisations with a broader suite of 
support activities in addition to training 
of aged care workers. Following extensive 
consultation with our Partners, a new three 
tier model was introduced for working with 
aged care organisations at a systemic level 
including management, policies, workplace 
culture and other long-term changes. 
Compared to previous iterations of the Silver 
Rainbow program, this new model relies 
on developing stronger relationships with 
deeper engagement to achieve sustainable 
changes. Not surprisingly, changing priorities 
for service providers resulting from the 
Royal Commission into Aged Care Quality 
and Safety, COVID-19 restrictions and 
limited opportunities for face-to-face 
contact with service provides provided 
additional barriers to this work. However, 
building relationships is expected to be a 
gradual process and significant progress 
has been made in transitioning to this new 
model with capacity building activities 
delivered nationally.

Silver Rainbow Training

39 sessions to

738
Aged care workers

Communities of Practice

7 sessions to

62
Participants

Capacity building with 
aged care facilities

68
Engagements
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Aged Care Systems Navigators Trial

Australia’s aged care system is difficult 
for older people and their families to 
understand and navigate. Some population 
groups, including LGBTI elders, have 
particular difficulty accessing the services 
they need using My Aged Care, the gateway 
to Australian Government subsidised aged 
care services. The Aged Care System 
Navigators is a national program led by 
Council of the Aged Australia (COTA) that 
aims to support people to understand the 
aged care system and how to engage 
with services. 

LGBTI Health Australia has been providing 
national coordination and support for two 
LGBTI trial locations with our two partner 
organisations, Meridian (ACT) and GRAI (WA). 
This important trial will inform the roll-out of 
a national Navigators program in 2022 and 
LGBTI Health Australia will continue its work 
in this space to ensure LGBTI inclusion is 
imbedded in the new program.

Our Silver Rainbow Partners
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Since February 2021, LGBTIQ+ Health 
Australia has been working on the new 
Our Voices, Our Lives, Our Way project. 
The project is a joint initiative between 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia and the National 
Ethnic Disability Alliance (NEDA) and is 
funded through the Department of Social 
Services via the Information, Linkages and 
Capacity Building - Individual Capacity 
Building Grant.

The Our Voices, Our Lives, Our Way project 
is grounded in the guiding principles of the 
Convention on the Rights of Persons with 
Disabilities and the social model of disability. 
The project aims to build the individual and 
collective capacity of LGBTIQ+ people with 
a disability in a dynamic and innovative 
way. This includes strengthening existing 
knowledge, skills and confidence to set, 
self-manage and achieve personal goals 
and to participate in social, economic and 
civic life. We will work across state and 
territory jurisdictions to create meaningful 
and transformative activities that will link 
LGBTIQ+ people with disability across 
Australia and result in an increase in social 
connection, self-advocacy, volunteering 
and community engagement. The project 
will develop and deliver knowledge and 
skills building content available nationwide 
including a pilot mentoring program and 
peer support activities. 

The project is working within a framework 
of co-design, where sector experts and 
LGBTIQ+ people with a lived experience 
of disability are engaged in the content 
design process. The project has fostered 
opportunities for co-design team members 
and roundtable participants to connect, 
share their experiences, and reduce 
isolation, which has been especially 
important during the COVID-19 restrictions. 
In addition to the co-design team and 
Roundtable, the project has benefited from 
its advisory committee which comprises of 
disability sector experts including LGBTIQ+ 
experts with lived experience of disability.
It was originally proposed pre COVID-19 
that the project would develop and deliver 
face-to-face training. The changes that the 
COVID-19 restrictions brought offered both 
challenges and opportunities. The challenge 
was to redesign the content and delivery 
method while still being able to achieve the 
projects aims within the original timeline 
proposed. The change to online delivery 
has provided the opportunity for increased 
accessibility for people with disability and 
greater reach to regional, rural and remote 
areas nationwide. Online content may 
increase the impact of the project as the 
content will be available for use after the 
funding cycle of the project. 

The training content supports LGBTIQ+ 
people with disability to develop new 
knowledge about rights-based information, 
access to services, how to make a 
constructive complaint and how to get more 
involved in advocacy and their community. 

Our Voices, Our Lives, Our Way Project -
Working together to build the capacity of LGBTIQ+ 
people with disability across Australia.

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
Annual Report 2020-2021

The project also aims to develop 
participants skills including leadership, 
communication, peer support, mentoring, 
and purposeful and safer storytelling. 

Alongside the development and delivery 
of the training content, a communities 
of practice will be established to bring 
together a national network of LGBTIQ+ 
people with disability, Disabled People 
Organisations (DPO’s) and community 
groups.  This aims to build their capacity 
by engaging in co-designed knowledge 
and skills building and networking which 
will be enhanced and expanded through 
this project. The combination of the training 
content and the communities of practice 
will provide an opportunity for ongoing 
mentoring and peer support to increase 
community engagement and collective 
capacity of LGBTIQ+ people with disability, 
DPOs, and communities. 

The Our Voices, Our Lives, Our Way project 
activities will be rolled out in 2022.



National Palliative Care 
Project 2020-2021

From July 2020, LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
has been funded by the Commonwealth 
Department of Health to engage in a 
three-year national palliative care project, 
aimed at improving LGBTIQ+ inclusion in 
palliative care in Australia. An exciting new 
program area for LGBTIQ+ Health Australia, 
palliative care includes treatment, care 
and support which aims to increase a 
person’s quality of life and comfort as they 
experience a life-limiting or advanced 
disease, including physical, psychological, 
social and spiritual aspects of wellbeing. 

Guided by co-design principles, this project 
was borne out of recognition that LGBTIQ+ 
people face additional barriers to accessing 
appropriate, quality palliative care and that 
this is especially true of more marginalised 
LGBTIQ+ people. Barriers include but are 
not limited to discrimination and stigma, 
anticipatory fear and distrust of health 
providers, lack of access to Advance Care 
Planning, mixed recognition of partners and 
chosen families, and social isolation.

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia’s National 
Palliative Care Project (NPCP) seeks to build 
the capacity of the palliative care sector 
to provide culturally appropriate services to 
LGBTIQ+ people, through the development 
of training e-modules aimed at increasing 
the knowledge, skills and confidence of 
general practitioners (GPs), practice nurses 
and other health professionals when working 
with LGBTIQ+ people. 

Our NPCP e-modules will be backed by 
research and evidence in the form of a 
comprehensive needs analysis report to 
inform educational content for health 
professionals, with a primary audience 
of nurses and GPs. The needs analysis 
is comprised of a scoping review of the 
literature published in Australia and 
internationally over the past five years, 

results from the project’s National Palliative 
Care Survey and insights gained from 
interviewing 10 LGBTIQ+ people who have 
some level of engagement in the 
health sector. 

National Palliative Care Survey Findings

In conjunction with the Australian College of 
Applied Psychology, and with approval by 
the College’s ethics committee, the National 
Palliative Care Survey was launched in 
June 2021 and attracted 837 completed 
responses. The scoping review and survey 
findings create a nuanced evidence base to 
inform the next phase of the project.

Key learnings include: 

• Transgender people are concerned that 
they face a high degree of assumptions 
about their gender, body or sexuality by 
health providers

• LGBTIQ+ people as well as non-LGBTIQ+ 
health providers are concerned about 
the inclusivity of faith-based settings; 
there is a low level of LGBTIQ+ training 
completion by health providers

• LGBTIQ+ health providers and non-
LGBTIQ+ health providers agree 
that palliative care is not inclusive of 
LGBTIQ+ people. However non-LGBTIQ+ 
health providers have a higher level 
of confidence that the care being 
provided is inclusive. 

Research social media campaign images
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What matters to LGBTIQ+ 
people accessing 
palliative care?

These and other findings will help to target 
e-module content with a co-design team 
in 2021-22. LGBTIQ+ Health Australia has 
commissioned a co-design expert to 
develop a trauma-informed framework 
to promote ethical, supported co-design 
within the project. The project is also backed 
by the expertise of a Steering Committee 
of leading Australian and international 
LGBTIQ+ health experts, academics, 
doctors, non-clinical health professionals 
and a co-design expert.

In addition to key project deliverables, 
the NPCP has consulted and built 
connections across the palliative care 
sector to incorporate LGBTIQ+ inclusion 
within mainstream resources and presented 
at conferences to promote awareness of 
LGBTIQ+ people’s palliative care needs, 
including sharing an inclusive palliative care 
tip sheet developed for Palliative Care Week 
in May 2021. 

The NPCP has been gratified by the genuine 
interest in this work by the broader health 
community, including many informal and 
formal partnerships, pilot opportunities, and 
exciting ways to leverage the project’s work 
in the future.

 
“Acknowledgement 
of my sexuality and 
my relationship. 
Understanding of my 
estrangement with my 
biological family.” 

 
“Understanding of our 
lived experiences 
without having to 
constantly educate.”
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LGBTIQ+ Health Australia works to establish a policy 
program that can deliver equity of health outcomes 
for LGBTIQ+ Australians. 

 
We encourage better 
data, support quality 
research, promote 
policy reform, share 
information and advocate 
for essential change that 
can overcome the serious 
health disparities faced by 
many people within our 
communities. 

 
We are relied upon 
by governments and 
non-government 
organisations to provide 
trusted advice, participate 
in public inquiries and 
collaborate with other 
national organisations 
to improve the policy 
landscape for LGBTI 
communities across 
Australia.

 
We continue to work 
closely with our members 
to inform and involve them 
in this policy work, tapping 
into their grass-roots 
knowledge and providing 
a conduit to the Australian 
Government for needed 
national reform.
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In July, Teresa Savage finished up and 
James Zanotto joined us as our new Policy 
and Research Manager. At the end of 
the year, we farewelled Daniel Comensoli 
and welcomed Amber Loomis as Policy 
and Research Coordinator. The Team was 
supported part of the year by Mish Pony as 
Trans and Gender Diverse Specialist Advisor 
and Minoo Eslami as Policy and Research 
Officer. We thank Teresa, Daniel, Mish and 
Minoo for their contributions during their 
time with us.

Irreplaceable policy advice

LHA relies on the knowledge and expertise 
of many people to inform its policy work 
and advocacy. 

We particularly thank our member 
organisations and allies in other 
organisations who have contributed in 
numerous ways through emails, phone calls 
and video meetings. 

Thanks also to our Trans and Gender 
Diverse Advisory Committee, which provides 
essential guidance about one of our 
communities facing significant health and 
wellbeing disparities. 
 
We appreciate as well regular contributions 
from Morgan Carpenter and Bonnie 
Hart on issues affecting people with 
intersex variation. Given the complexity 
and significance of these issues, LHA will 
establish an intersex advisory group over the 
coming year.

In June, CEO Nicky Bath traveled to 
Canberra with Morgan Carpenter (IHRA) 
to meet with MPs, bureaucrats and the 
National Health and Medical Research 
Council (NHMRC) advocating for 
funding and a prohibition of deferrable 
medical interventions.
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Setting the policy agenda

Federal Budget 2021-2022

In January 2021, we worked with member 
organisations to develop a pre-budget 
submission to the Assistant Minister for 
Treasury and Finance, which highlighted the 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia key priorities in 
LGBTIQ+ health.

2021 Policy Priorities

Issues in our budget submission were 
developed to establish our LGBTIQ+ Health 
& Wellbeing Policy Priorities 2021. This 
document sets a platform for advocacy in 
the lead up to the next Federal election, 
due by May 2022.

Despite recent reform, health disparities 
that LGBTIQ+ people experience remain 
unchanged or continue to decline. 
LGBTIQ+ people are identified as a priority 
population in a range of national health and 
wellbeing strategies, but there is a lack of 
national coordination of goals and targets.
A central focus is the translation of agreed 
national priorities into a 10-year national 
LGBTIQ+ health and wellbeing Action 
Plan, with stronger national coordination, 
advocacy and capacity building. We 
identified the need for investment in 
LGBTIQ+ community health organisations to 
enhance capacity.

The 2021 policy priorities also sought 
targeted action on major health disparities:
• Crisis intervention for mental health and 

suicide prevention
• Health and wellbeing for our LGBTIQ+ 

elders
• Increased participation for people 

with disability
• Culturally safe health programs for 

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
LGBTIQ+ people, Brotherboys and 
Sistergirls.

• Intersex health and wellbeing
• Trans and gender diverse health 

and wellbeing
• Cancer and cancer care
• Intimate partner and family violence
• Alcohol and other drugs 

Parliamentary Launch

Our Policy Priorities 2021 was launched in 
Canberra on 22 June at a forum with the 
Parliamentary Friendship Group for 
LGBTIQ Australians.

Following a long break imposed by the 
COVID-19 pandemic, our CEO was in 
Canberra in June advocating our policy 
agenda with elected representatives 
and bureaucrats. 

Key meetings included the Parliamentary 
Friends of Ageing and Aged Care, David 
Coleman (Assistant Minister to the Prime 
Minister for Mental Health and Suicide 
Prevention), Mark Butler (Shadow Minister for 
Health and Ageing), the office of the Minister 
Ruston (Minister for Families and Social 
Services of Australia, Minister for Women’s 
Safety) and the National mental 
Health Commission.
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LGBTIQ+ data and research

A central priority for 2021 is investment in 
data and research, including implementation 
of the new Australian Bureau of Statistics 
(ABS) standard for LGBTIQ+ data collection.

In our submission October 2020 submission 
to consultation on research and innovation 
priorities for the Australian Government’s 
$20 billion Medical Research Future Fund, 
we highlighted serious gaps in data and 
research due to the lack of inclusion of 
sexual orientation, gender identity and 
intersex status in population research 
and data collection. As evidence-based 
policy relies on data, exclusion has led to 
inaccuracy and underestimates, which 
impact on policies, strategies 
and programmes. 

ABS 2020 Standard

In March 2021, the ABS released its 
Standard for Sex, Gender, Variation of Sex 
Characteristics and Sexual Orientation 
Variables, 2020 (‘2020 Standard’).

The 2020 Standard was developed by 
the ABS to achieve nationally consistent 
LGBTIQ+ data indicators that improve 
collection and dissemination of data 
relating to sex, gender, sex characteristics 
and sexual orientation.

LHA, along with other community-
led organisations and researchers, 
participated as an active member of the 
Sex, Sex Characteristics, Gender and 
Sexual Orientation Reference Group, to 
provide expert advice on updating the 
2016 standard.

There is a clear need for this Standard to be 
used universally across the health system 
and LHA is working to promote use the 
variables in all government surveys, minimum 
data sets, suicide death data records and 
research surveys.

Census Campaign

In 2019 and 2020, LGBTIQ+ Health 
Australia led a strong campaign have the 
standard adopted for the 2021 census. 
140 organisations signed up with expertise 
spanning across mental health, suicide 
prevention, social services, disability, aged 
care, family violence, human rights 
and research.

Unfortunately, in November 2020 the 
Australian Government confirmed the 
2021 census without questions that 
provide an adequate picture of Australia’s 
LGBTIQ+ populations.

LHA continues campaigning, knowing that it 
can take years to get a new question added 
to the census. There is strong and growing 
support for change and most importantly a 
clear need for this data.
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National Research Network

In early 2021, LHA brought together 
experienced LGBTIQ+ researchers to begin 
forming a National LGBTIQ+ Health and 
Wellbeing Research Network. 

The network will:
• Connect researchers and research 

organisations.
• Make LGBTIQ+ research more readily 

available.
• Support quality research to fill gaps, 

minimise duplication, and strengthen 
findings.

• Develop an authoritative voice to 
contribute to the development of 
evidence-based policy and good 
practice.

The steering committee has developed 
three projects for launch later in 2021:
• A research advice service to assist 

community-controlled, non-government 
and not-for profit organisations with 
policy and program development.

• An online member forum (Facebook 
group) to engage with researchers and 
share information.

• A series of on-line forums to bring 
researchers together and discuss topics 
of interest.

Mental health crisis

Mental Health Snapshot

LHA again updated its Snapshot of Mental 
Health and Suicide Prevention Statistics for 
LGBTIQ+ people, summarising what is known 
of current outcomes for LGBTIQ+ people 
in Australia.

The 2021 update includes significant new 
research from Private Lives 3 and Writing 
Themselves In 4 by Australian Research 
Centre in Sex, Health and Society, 
La Trobe University.
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The data confirms that our communities are 
nearly six times more likely to experience 
and be diagnosed with depression and two 
and a half times more likely to have been 
diagnosed or treated for a mental health 
condition in the past year. Among specific 
communities, outcomes are worse. Rates 
are higher among those who are trans and 
gender diverse, intersex, bisexual, pansexual, 
queer or asexual.

The Snapshot is one of the most accessed 
resources on our website.

Urgent focus and action

This is a critical juncture for the mental 
health of LGBTIQ+ Australians. The COVID-19 
pandemic has brought focus on the need 
for mental health support and exposed 
the inadequacy of care for LGBTIQ+ 
communities.

The report of the Productivity Commission 
inquiry on mental health was released 
November 2020, with the first National 
Suicide Prevention Adviser providing 
her final advice to the Prime Minister in 
December 2020. In response, the Australian 
Government released its National Mental 
Health and Suicide Prevention Plan in May 
2021 committing to reform the system and 
continue work toward zero suicides.

LHA also made submissions and 
provided oral evidence to the House of 
Representatives Select Committee on 
Mental Health and Suicide Prevention. 

We also participated in a review of the 
National Suicide and Self-Harm Monitoring 
System and met with the National Mental 
Health Commission about its Children’s 
Mental Health Strategy.

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
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National Strategy Development

LHA has done consultation and research 
to develop our second National LGBTIQ+ 
Mental Health and Suicide Prevention 
Strategy.

The strategy, to be launched in late 2021, 
highlights the need for an urgent, whole-
of-government response nationally, 
coordinated with the states and territories, 
in partnership with well-resourced LGBTIQ+ 
community-controlled health organisations.

Ageing and aged care

Royal Commission

In 2019 and 2020, LHA consulted extensively 
with LGBTIQ+ communities across Australia 
to inform our submissions to the Royal 
Commission into Aged Care Quality 
and Safety.

Following the much-awaited release of the 
Final Report in March 2021, LHA reconvened 
our advisory committee and consulted 
further to prepare a detailed response to 
the final report. We explored the outcomes 
in a webinar in March and through sessions 
at our 5th LGBTI Ageing and Aged Care 
Conference in April. 

An enormous thank you to the many people 
who shared experiences and knowledge 
to shape our response to the Royal 
Commission, which can be downloaded 
from our website.

Although the lack of focus in the Final Report 
on the specific needs of our communities 
was disappointing, the recommend update 
the Aged Care Quality Standards to 
reflect the Aged Care Diversity framework 
can deliver significant reform and LHA will 
continue advocating for the diversity action 
plans to become mandatory.

In April, we collaborated on a joint 
statement by 12 aged care consumer 
organisations on actions to be taken 
following the royal commission Final Report.

Collaboration

LHA continues to build engagement with 
the aged care sector to promote action 
for LGBTIQ+ elders, including participation 
in the National Aged Care Alliance 
(NACA), membership of Elder Abuse Action 
Australia (EAAA) advisory group and 
growing engagement internationally with 
the Global Alliance for the Rights of Older 
People (GAROP) on the development of a 
convention for older people.

In May, we participated in Aged Care 
Services Australia (ACSA) conference, with 
the CEO presenting in panel session on 
workforce strategies.

Family, domestic, and sexual violence

Parliamentary committee

In 2020, LHA made a submission and 
provided oral evidence to the House of 
Representatives Standing Committee on 
Social Policy and Legal Affairs inquiry into 
family, domestic and sexual violence in 
July 2020. 

Policy responses to intimate partner 
and family violence have historically 
been informed by heteronormative and 
cisnormative assumptions, rendering LGBTI 
people relatively invisible. LHA aimed to 
provide a better understanding of the 
experiences of gay, bisexual, trans and 
gender diverse men, and non-binary people.
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The inquiry’s final report was released 
March 2021. A key recommendation from 
the inquiry was to recognise the needs of 
LGBTIQ+ people in the next ‘National Plan 
to Reduce Violence against Women and 
their Children’ (recommendation 3) and 
that the plan be renamed ‘National plan to 
reduce family, domestic and sexual violence’ 
(recommendation 4).

New National Plan

In April, the Australian Government 
announced the start of consultations to 
develop a new plan, including a national 
summit. LHA is building its advocacy and 
campaigning to ensure that family and 
sexual violence against LGBTIQ+ people 
is addressed.

LGBTIQ+ people with a disability

Building on our work with disability 
organisations and individual LGBTIQ+ 
people living with disability, especially 
through the NDIS funded Employable 
Q project, LHA engaged with the Royal 
Commission into Violence, Abuse, Neglect 
and Exploitation of People with Disability 
to ensure the Royal Commission applied 
an intersectional lens to developing a more 
inclusive society for LGBTIQ+ people 
with disability.

In a detailed submission and oral 
presentation on the Commission’s issues 
paper on barriers and challenges to 
inclusion, LHA focused particularly on 
workplace inclusion.

LHA also raised concerns on behalf 
of LGBTIQ+ people and their families 
concerned about access to specialist 
and community-controlled organisations 
LGBTIQ+ organisations, in response to 
proposed changes in support coordination.

Australian Government strategy 
consultations

In recognition that LGBTIQ+ people 
experience an avoidable and greater 
burden of disease compared with wider 
Australian community, LGBTIQ+ people are 
identified as a priority population in a range 
of national health and wellbeing strategies, 
but often without specific targets and 
actions, and no national monitoring and 
coordination of goals. 

This underpins the call for a 10-year National 
LGBTIQ+ Health and Wellbeing Action Plan 
that consolidates existing strategies to 
provide a strategic framework for Australia’s 
response to improve LGBTIQ+ health 
and wellbeing.

During 2020-2021, LHA repeatedly identified 
and raised concerns about gaps in draft 
strategies under development by Australian 
Government. 
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Preventive Health

The new 10-year National Preventive Health 
Strategy is intended The Strategy aims to 
help Australians improve their health at all 
stages of life, through early intervention, 
better information, targeting risk factors 
and addressing the broader causes of poor 
health and wellbeing.

LHA made an initial submission in September 
2020 and responded to the draft strategy 
in April 2021. While supporting the overall 
vision, our key concern is that the draft 
failed to provide targeted action for most 
of its identified priority groups, including 
LGBTIQ+ people.

We detailed research demonstrating the 
relationship between health outcomes 
and the stigma, marginalisation, abuse, 
discrimination, harassment and violence 
against LGBTIQ+ people, and recommended 
preventive action to facilitate safe and 
inclusive environments for LGBTIQ+ people.

Preventing Child Abuse

In our May 2021 submission, LHA welcomed 
explicit recognition that LGBTQIA+ 
communities a priority for the National 
Strategy to Prevent Child Sexual Abuse 
and the invitation in the Final Development 
Consultation Paper for continued dialogue 
and engagement.

Research highlights that the way cultures 
value heterosexuality and stigmatise sexual 
diversity may increase the risk of child 
sexual abuse and there are high levels of 
discrimination and abuse experienced 
by LGBTIQ+ young people in Australian 
educational settings.
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Systems and Processes

During the 2020-21 financial year Corporate 
Services looked at various ways in which 
systems and processes could be improved 
within the organisation. Various processes 
were improved and an Operational 
Procedures Manual was created in order 
to assist the team by way of having a one 
stop document to refer to, enabling them 
to easily see the procedure for all internal 
operational processes.  

Financial management

The financial management services for 
LHA are continuing to be managed by the 
Purpose Accounting team which directly 
supports the financial oversight of the 
Finance, Audit and Risk Management 
Committee of the board, and with LHA 
staff team, soundly delivering the many 
financial requirements of LHA: a robust 
budgeting and forecasting process, a 
clear auditing process through to our 
external auditors, funding acquittals, and 
controlled day-to-day finance and payroll 
transaction services.

The corporate services team continues to work hard 
in stabilising and  improving the operating systems of 
LHA. The team are working towards managing as many 
operational tasks in-house as possible to utilise the skills 
and experience of the corporate services team and to 
provide better support to the rest of the organisation and 
it’s members.

HR Management

Valuable support continues to come from 
Enrich-HR (previously 360HR), our outsourced 
HR management consultants.  Enrich-HR 
deliver our online HR portal and records 
storage and provide specialist advice and 
input in all our HR matters and processes. 
We’d like to acknowledge another active 
year in HR, with planned staffing changes 
delivered, recruitment and new team 
members on-boarded. Thanks again to the 
team at Enrich-HR.

The Corporate Services team, in conjunction 
with EnrichHR, have started to better 
utilise our HR system, EnableHR.  We have 
completed the implementation of the 
Employee Review system within EnableHR 
which has proved vital to the management 
and progression of LHA staff.  We have 
also completed the recruitment process 
within this system and are looking at further 
ways in which other HR processes can 
be managed through EnableHR to assist 
in keeping all of our HR processes within 
one portal, providing vastly improved 
management for everything related to HR.
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Our Members

In the last 12 months LHA have looked 
into ways in which the member offerings 
could be improved.  These have now been 
updated and within this, we have regular 
online meetings with our Full Members.  
These meetings have proved to be 
extremely invaluable, not only bringing our 
full members together but allowing them to 
collaborate with ideas and assist each other 
and also allowing LHA to support them 
as much as possible.  Corporate Services 
manage the logistics of these meetings 
and provide secretariat support within our 
meeting portal, Our Cat Herder.

Staff planning and development

Unfortunately, due to COVID restrictions 
being in place for more than a quarter of 
the year throughout 2021, the LHA team 
were unable to hold their End of Financial 
Year (EOFY) lunch in June.  The team were 
still able to hold two one day Staff Planning 
Days – on of these virtually and the other 
celebrated our return to our WeWork offices 
and the near end of COVID restrictions.  
This proved integral in bringing the team 
together, to enable the various programs to 
share the work they have been doing and 
will be continuing throughout the rest of the 
year. Included within the Staff Planning Days 
was the Lateral Violence training presented 
by Beth Cronin which proved to be hugely 
beneficial to all of the LHA team.  The staff 
development days enabled the team to 
focus on collaboration, priorities and most 
importantly to connect.

With the ongoing challenges that came 
with COVID-19, the chance for the team to 
connect and bond proved to be even 
more invaluable.  
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Staff safety during COVID-19

LHA was challenged like all employers, 
to prioritise safety during the COVID-19 
pandemic, while continuing to deliver 
services. Our staff worked remotely from 
home for much of 2021, adapting to 
collaborate safely online.

The LHA team have supported each other 
and worked extremely well given the 
challenge of working online for so long 
during lockdown.  

Staff virtual morning tea during COVID lockdown
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Office Lease

LHA extended the lease on the office 
premises in Pyrmont, upsizing to a new 
space within the building. LHA continues to 
provide flexible working allowing the LHA 
team to continue to split their working time 
between their home and our contemporary 
and flexible co-working space in Pyrmont.

Rebranding & Promotional Products

In January 2021, LHA changed their name 
from National LGBTI Health Alliance to 
LGBTIQ+ Health Australia to underpin its 
position as the national peak body for 
LGBTIQ+ health and wellbeing across 
Australia. The organisation was stylised 
as LGBTIQ+ Health Australia on all of our 
public-facing and branded products. 
The Board also consulted widely with 
members and stakeholders in creating 
a new Strategic Plan, seeking feedback 
on the organisation’s name, brand and 
communications. There was broad support 
to include Q+ in the strategy and the name. 

Pictured: 
Common area, 
WeWork Pyrmont. Promotional Products provided to new members
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Evan O’Rourke  
Co-Opted Director

Evan has 15 years’ experience as an 
accountant and 10 years as a Chartered 
Accountant in public practice. Subsequent 
to finishing his CA, he completed a Masters 
in Applied Taxation at UNSW. He is currently 
the managing partner at ESN Partners, an 
accounting firm he founded in 2011. Before 
founding ESN Partners, Evan worked at PKF 
(Now BDO) which at the time was the 
fifth largest accounting firm in Australia. 
In his role at PKF, Evan was responsible for 
multiple audits of not-for-profit entities. 
Evan has continued to use this experience 
in his relationships as an accountant for 
not-for-profit entities. Evan (through ESN 
Partners) was previously the external 
accountant for the National LGBTI Health 
Alliance for 5 years from 2014 to 2019 and 
as such, has a detailed knowledge and 
understanding of the Alliance’s finances.

Suzanne Castellas 
Co-Opted Director

Suzanne Castellas is the Principal Lawyer 
of Castell Lawyers, and previously the 
Director and Senior Human Rights Lawyer 
for the HIV/AIDS Legal Centre a, as well as a 
Lawyer at Legal Aid and the Inner City Legal
Centre working closely with LGBTIQ 
communities and the national BBV and STI 
health sectors. She has had the privilege of 
providing legal services to vulnerable and 
disadvantaged clients with complex legal 
and non-legal needs, a focus she continues 
to have in her private practice. Suzanne 
drives law reform through litigation to 
address the stigma and discrimination that 
continues to affect LGBTIQ communities and 
those with BBVs.

Suzanne passionately contributes to 
community initiatives on a wide range of 
topics from the abuse of Police powers 
at LGBTIQ events to ‘gay hate crimes’, 
and the ‘expungement of homosexual 
crimes. She is an advocate for community 
education and has provided lectures and 
workshops to health care professionals and 
medical students on their legal and ethical 
responsibilities. In addition to acting on 
not-for-profit boards, she provides pro bono 
support on many community and law 
reform initiatives.

Before practising law for the community 
sector, Suzanne had an extensive 
career overseas as a corporate legal 
professional. Her worked focused on 
merges & acquisitions, crisis management, 
rehabilitation, liquidation, and integration.
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Desmond Ford 
Director for South Australia

Desmond joined the Alliance Board in 
2018. Desmond has a long history of 
working in social services for both NGO’s 
and Government, having held a range 
of Senior Management positions. He 
also has significant experience in project 
management having established LGBTI 
projects in both metropolitan and regional 
centres across South Australia. For many 
years he worked at the Bfriend project, 
supporting newly identifying LGBTI people 
and their families. He has also run training 
for a range of professional bodies on LGBTI 
Inclusion, including teachers, mental health 
workers, allied health workers and aged 
care workers.

Most recently Desmond was the Project 
Manager at COTA SA where he led the 
LGBTIQ People Ageing Well Project. 
Following that role, as the Head of Programs 
and Business Development at COTA SA, he 
was responsible for setting up the COTA SA 
Rainbow Hub, which provides a range 
of support services for LGBTI elders and 
delivers the Silver Rainbow training to aged 
care services in South Australia.

Alastair Lawrie 
Director for New South Wales

Alastair Lawrie is long-term LGBTIQ 
community advocate based in Wollongong, 
NSW. He is a mentor with the Pinnacle 
Foundation, member of the LGBTI 
Sub-Committee of Australian Lawyers for 
Human Rights, and member of the Pride 
Foundation Australia LGBTIQ+ Refugee 
Working Group. He is also an advisor to 
the Board of Just.Equal Australia on anti-
discrimination issues and NSW LGBTI law 
reform and writes Australia’s leading LGBTI 
rights blog (www.alastairlawrie.net).
 

Professionally, Alastair is currently the Policy 
Manager at the Public Interest Advocacy 
Centre, having previously served as the 
Policy & Engagement Manager at Hepatitis 
NSW. He is interested in a variety of health 
issues affecting LGBTIQ communities, 
including the adverse health impacts 
of discrimination (especially in the area 
of education), disproportionate rates of 
mental illness and suicide, blood borne virus 
prevention, and ending coercive treatments 
on intersex children.

Dr. Lynn Jarvis 
Director for Tasmania

Dr Lynn Jarvis is the Chief Executive Officer 
for Working It Out, Tasmania’s diverse 
gender, sex and sexuality support service 
and education provider. Lynn has worked in 
a variety of management and executive 
level positions across government, adult 
and higher education and the not-for-
profit sector, and while a born and bred 
Tasmanian, Lynn has also lived and worked 
in Japan, Malaysia and Cambodia. 
A key theme of Lynn’s work is supporting 
those marginalized from opportunity to live 
full and inclusive lives in whatever way that 
means for them. 

Her focus is on leading from a values-based 
position and on working towards a more 
just society for all. Lynn has a BA (Hons) from 
the University of Tasmania, a Bachelor of 
Education from Edith Cowan University and 
a Doctorate in Education from the University 
of Wollongong.
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Sarah Bowman  
Director for New South Wales

Sarah Bowman (she/her) is a registrar 
clinical psychologist, doctoral researcher, 
and member of the transgender and 
gender diverse community. She holds a 
Bachelor of Social Sciences (Psychology) 
(First Class Honours) and a Master of Clinical 
Psychology degrees. 

Her clinical work with adolescents and 
adults focuses on helping clients to develop 
resilience and an authentic sense of self. As 
a published researcher she is passionate 
about transgender and gender diverse 
mental health and quality of life. As an 
advocate she is involved in public speaking, 
lecturing and peer-training on gender 
diversity and inclusivity. 

Additional community engagements include 
serving on the board for Twenty10, research 
committee member for the Australian 
Professional Association of Transgender 
Health and member of the wellbeing 
advisory group for the youth mental health 
group One Eighty.

Sandra Norman 
Director for Western Australia

Sandra has been working in LGBTI services 
in Western Australia for over 20 years. She 
works for Living Proud, the WA partner for 
QLife, where she trains the peer support 
volunteers. She also coordinates and 
delivers LGBTI inclusion training to service 
providers throughout the state.
 
Sandra’s background in the community 
sector includes the areas of youth 
homelessness, family and domestic 
violence, aged care, sexual health and 
mental health. In addition to Living Proud 
her other current work is for a disability 
organisation. She is also a registered 
LivingWorks trainer and provides ASIST 
suicide intervention workshops.

Carolyn Gillespie 
Director for Victoria / Chair

Carolyn is a social worker, intersectional 
feminist and human rights advocate 
with more than 20 years’ experience in 
healthcare and social justice. She is the 
Director of Services at Thorne Harbour 
Health, Victoria’s largest community-
based and community-controlled LGBTI 
organisation, with responsibility for both HIV 
and LGBTI service portfolios. Carolyn has 
worked in a range of senior leadership roles 
in both paediatric and adult health services, 
and is passionate about addressing the 
health, social and structural inequities 
that impact on people’s capacity to fully 
participate in the communities in which they 
live, love, learn and play.

Carolyn possesses significant expertise 
in sexual assault, both as Convenor/
Member of the Victorian peak organisation 
for sexual assault services (CASA Forum), 
and in leading a major sexual assault 
service during a period of significant state 
and national reform. Carolyn has also 
worked internationally, establishing the first 
community-based sexual assault service 
in Cambodia.

Carolyn has provided expert advice on a 
range of health-related issues to numerous 
government inquiries, health service reviews 
and special interest panels, and regularly 
participates in a broader advocacy 
platform that addresses stigma and 
discrimination through her involvement in 
a variety of key working groups. Carolyn is 
committed to excellence in evidence-based 
service delivery and she is also an active 
advocate for strategic and systemic change 
that better supports the health and 
well-being of the entire LGBTI community.
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Sam Edwards 
Director For Australian Capital Territory

Samantha Edwards has a long history of 
political and social activism. She has a deep 
commitment to the LGTBQIA+ community 
and its social, emotional, and political 
well-being. Since the 1980s she has filled 
a number of diverse roles coordinating 
and working on projects, festivals, boards, 
community radio, supporting rainbow 
families, FB support groups and with HIV/
AIDS organisations. Samantha Edwards 
took this commitment to her 22-year career 
in the public service in senior management 
positions working  on major LGTBQIA+ 
policies in the areas of HIV/AIDS, LGTBQIA+ 
ageing research grants and programs, and 
sexual health and family planning. She has a 
track record in delivering to her community.
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia ("LHA") is incorporated as a company limited by guarantee and not having a share
capital under the provision of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. The directors present
their report on LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2021.

(a) General information

Directors

The names of the directors in office at any time during, or since the end of, the year are:

Names Position Appointed/Resigned

Carolyn Gillespie (VIC) Chair

Graham Lovelock (WA) Resigned 30 November 2020

Desmond Ford (SA) Deputy Chair

Terence Humphreys (NSW) Resigned 30 November 2020

Suzanne Castellas

Raymond Zada Retired 28 July 2021

Lynn Jarvis (TAS)

Sarah Bowman Appointed 30 November 2020

Sandra Norman Appointed 30 November 2020

Alastair Lawrie Appointed 30 November 2020

Samantha Edwards (ACT)

James Emery (NT) Resigned 11 June 2021

Evan O'Rourke Treasurer

Cameron Darling Appointed 30 November 2020
Resigned 12 April 2021

Philippa Moss Resigned 28 July 2020

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Company secretary

Cameron Lilburn resigned on 14 December 2020. The board appointed Leanne Williams as new Company Secretary
on 14 December 2020.

Principal activities

The principal activities of LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia during the financial year were the improvement of health and
well-being of lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans/transgender, intersex and other sexuality, gender, and bodily diverse people.

1

52

FINANCIALS

LGBTIQ+ Health Australia 
Annual Report 2020-2021



53

FINANCIALS
LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

(a) General information (Cont'd)

Significant changes in the state of affairs

The spread of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) was declared a global pandemic on 11 March 2020 by the World
Health Organisation and is having a significant impact on both local and global communities and economies.

The Company has made an assessment of the COVID-19 pandemic impact on financial reporting and determined that
the Company's revenues for the year and overall financial position as at 30 June 2021 have not been significantly
impacted.

The Company has undertaken measures and precautions to ensure that it continues to operate and to protect staff and
members as the COVID-19 pandemic continues to extend globally. Technology has facilitated effective communication
whilst working from home, including  video conferencing facilities. The Company also implemented a range of
initiatives to protect staff and members including travel restrictions, social distancing protocols and guidelines for
visitors.

Except for the above, there have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the year.

Events after the reporting date

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to create uncertainty in both local and global communities and economies, the
Company continues to consider the impact on its future operations and undertake appropriate measures and
precautions in response.

Except for the above, there have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the year.

Strategic Plan 2021-2023

The directors have been governing the development of a new strategic plan for LHA for 2021-2023.  A specialist
organisational strategist assisted the directors to develop this plan and consulted with Members of LHA through
interviews and focus groups.  A new strategic plan has been created and was launched alongside the renaming of the
organisation and new branding.

Our Purpose

We are the national peak body for LGBTIQ+ health and the voice of our members, partner organisations and the
communities we collectively represent.

Our Vision

Healthy, lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans/transgender, intersex, and other sexuality, gender and bodily diverse people and
communities throughout Australia and the world free from stigma and discrimination.

2
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

(a) General information (Cont'd)

Strategic Plan 2021-2023 (Cont'd)

Our Core Values

 LEADERSHIP

Using our uniquely placed collective expertise and lived experience, we build trust and capacity with stakeholders and
decision makers for maximum impact. We lead, inspire, and strengthen our communities, creating change for the
better.

 INTEGRITY

Using our uniquely placed collective expertise and lived experience, we build trust and capacity with stakeholders and
decision makers for maximum impact. We lead, inspire, and strengthen our communities, creating change for the
better.

 INCLUSION

We recognise and champion the diversity and intersectionality of our communities ensuring experiences are valued,
represented and treated with compassion.

 COLLABORATION

Foster, develop and deliver curriculums that are inclusive of LGBTIQ people, their families and communities.
Advocate that future training programs for health, education and community providers are inclusive of needs.  

 INNOVATION

We effect meaningful societal change by contributing to, and drawing from, a second base.

What we do

1. We are the national voice for LGBTIQ+ health and wellbeing

2. We foster productive partnerships at the national and international levels to effect meaningful change at the local
level.

3. We work collaboratively with our members and recognise the intersectionality of our communities

4. We demonstrate sound and sustainable governance

(b) Operating results and review of operations for the year

Operating result

The surplus of the Company for the financial year amounted to $177,311 (2020:$76,756).

LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia did not apply for the Federal Government JobKeeper stimulus program. The directors
identified that the Company may have only been eligible against the decline in turnover test through a cash-based
timing assessment. The directors did not consider it reasonable or ethical to apply under this basis.

3
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Directors' Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

(c) Meetings of directors

During the financial year, 8 meetings of directors (excluding committees of directors) were held. Attendances by each
director during the year were as follows:

Directors' Meetings

Number
eligible to

attend
Number
attended

Carolyn Gillespie (VIC) 8 7

Graham Lovelock (WA) 3 3

Desmond Ford (SA) 8 5

Terence Humphreys (NSW) 3 3

Audrey Warlick 2 2

Suzanne Castellas 8 5

Raymond Zada 7 2

Nicky Bath 7 5

Lynn Jarvis (TAS) 7 7

Sarah Bowman 3 2

Sandra Norman 4 4

Alastair Lawrie 4 4

Samantha Edwards (ACT) 7 5

James Emery (NT) 7 -

Evan O'Rourke 7 5

Cameron Darling 2 1

Auditor's independence declaration

The auditor's independence declaration in accordance with subdivision 60-C section 60-40 of the Australian Charities
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, for the year ended 30 June 2021 has been received and can be found on
page 5 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Chair ..........................................................................

  Carolyn Gillespie (VIC)

Treasurer ................................................................

Evan O'Rourke

Dated this ............................. day of .............................. 2021

4
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Auditor's Independence Declaration under S 60.40 of the Australian
Charities And Not-For-Profits Commission Act 2012 to the Directors of
LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2021, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

DFK Laurence Varnay Auditors Pty Ltd

Faizal Ajmat
Director

5
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note

2021

$

2020

$

Revenue 4 5,883,213 5,189,108

Other revenue 4 200,270 118,137

Employee benefits expense (1,522,436) (1,379,233)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (25,137) (18,454)

Other expenses 5 (4,358,599) (3,832,802)

Surplus before income tax 177,311 76,756

Income tax expense 2(b) - -

Surplus for the year 177,311 76,756

Other comprehensive income, net of
income tax - -

Total comprehensive income for the
year 177,311 76,756

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
6
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2021

Note

2021

$

2020

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,599,542 1,169,861

Trade and other receivables 7 80,376 41,340

Current tax receivable 13 100,106 34,000

Other assets 8 49,195 -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,829,219 1,245,201

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 10 12,170 24,297

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 12,170 24,297

TOTAL ASSETS 1,841,389 1,269,498

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 9 157,665 498,014

Employee benefits 11 52,866 61,674

Other financial liabilities 12 949,296 210,923

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,159,827 770,611

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 11 20,734 15,370

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 20,734 15,370

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,180,561 785,981

NET ASSETS 660,828 483,517

EQUITY

Restricted reserves 16 45,146 -

Retained surplus 615,682 483,517

TOTAL EQUITY 660,828 483,517

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
7
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2021

Retained
Surplus

$

Restricted
Reserves

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2020 483,517 - 483,517

Surplus for the year 177,311 - 177,311

Transfer to restricted reserves (45,146) 45,146 -

Balance at 30 June 2021 615,682 45,146 660,828

2020

Retained
Surplus

$

Restricted
Reserves

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2019 406,761 - 406,761

Surplus for the year 76,756 - 76,756

Balance at 30 June 2020 483,517 - 483,517

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
8
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note

2021

$

2020

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers 6,725,051 5,148,830

Payments to suppliers and employees (6,224,827) (4,974,492)

GST paid (66,106) (16,797)

Interest received 8,572 16,509

Net cash provided by operating activities 19 442,690 174,050

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 1,093

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (13,010) (40,844)

Net cash used in investing activities (13,010) (39,751)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held 429,680 134,299

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,169,862 1,035,562

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial
year

6

1,599,542 1,169,861

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
9
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

The financial report covers LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia as an individual entity. LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia is a not-for
profit Company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

The functional and presentation currency of LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia is Australian dollars.

1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosure and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission
Act 2012. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below
and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable by the measurement at fair value of selected non- current assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Comparative Amounts

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

(b) Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the Company is exempt from income tax under Div 50 of the
Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(c) Revenue and other income

AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to not-for-profit (NFP)
entities, in conjunction with AASB 15. The income recognition requirements under AASB 1058 shift the focus
from a reciprocal/non-reciprocal basis to a basis of assessment that considers the enforceability of a contract
and the specificity of performance obligations.

The core principle of the new income recognition requirements in AASB 1058 is when a NFP entity enters into
transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset
principally to enable the entity to further its objectives, the excess of the asset recognised (at fair value) over
any 'related amounts' is recognised as income immediately.

An example of a 'related amount' is AASB 15 and in cases where there is an 'enforceable' contract with a
customer with 'sufficiently specific' performance obligations, income is recognised when (or as) the performance
obligations are satisfied under AASB 15, as opposed to immediate income recognition under AASB 1058.
Under AASB 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
'control' of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
AASB 15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition.

The entity recognises revenue from the following major sources is recognised when the amount of the revenue
can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company and specific criteria relating to the type of revenue as noted below, has been satisfied.

10
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LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia
ABN: 45 138 151 569

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(c) Revenue and other income (Cont'd)

The entity recognises revenue from the following major sources

- Government grants
- Donations

Government grant

The organisation has analysed the terms of each contract to determine whether the arrangement meets the
enforceability and the 'sufficiently specific' criteria under AASB 15. For those grant contracts that are not
enforceable or the performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, this will result in immediate income
recognition under AASB 1058. Income will be deferred under AASB 15 otherwise and recognised when (or as)
the performance obligations are satisfied.

Donations

Based on an analysis of the organisation's underlying arrangements for donations as at 30 June 2021 on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the organisation has assessed that the impact of the
income requirements will not have a significant impact on the amounts recognised in the Organisation's
financial statements as majority of the donations do not meet the 'enforceability' and the 'sufficiently specific'
criteria under AASB 15 and would therefore be accounted as immediate income recognition under AASB 1058.

Interest revenue

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

(d) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables
in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable.

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment of losses.

11
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a reducing balance basis over the
assets useful life to the Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class Depreciation rate

Computer Equipment 66.67%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

(f) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured
at:

 amortised cost

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

 the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

12
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(f) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.  Gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets:

 financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Company uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant
increase in credit risk.

The Company uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

 the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse to the

Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

 the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received.  This is applied using a probability
weighted approach.

Trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an
estimation of lifetime expected credit losses.  The Company has determined the probability of non-payment of
the receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in
finance expense.  Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is
written off against the associated allowance.

Where the Company renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new expected
cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value
is recognised in profit or loss.

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the Company determines whether there is an evidence of an impairment
indicator for non-financial assets.

13
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

Where an indicator exists and regardless for indefinite life intangible assets and intangible assets not yet
available for use, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value
in use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-
generating unit.

Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversal indicators are considered in subsequent periods for all assets which have suffered an impairment
loss.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

(i) Leases

At the lease commencement, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the
lease term.  The lease term includes extension periods where the Company believes it is reasonably certain
that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of the
lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed for impairment
in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease.  The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be
readily determined then the Company's incremental borrowing rate is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.  The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease modification, change in estimate of the
lease term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI) or a change in the Company's
assessment of lease term.

Where the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the remeasurement or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

(i) Leases (Cont'd)

Exceptions to lease accounting

The Company has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for short-term leases (i.e. leases with a
term of less than or equal to 12 months).  The Company recognises the payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(j) Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than twelve months after the end of the reporting period have
been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on national
government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the
measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits are presented as current liabilities in the statement of financial position if the Company does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date
regardless of the classification of the liability for measurement purposes under AASB 119.

(k) Current and non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intented to be sold or consumated
in the Company's normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be
realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other
assets are classed as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating
cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting
period; or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast 12 months after the
reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

(l) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Company has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time at 30 June 2021, the adoption
of these standards has not caused any material adjustments to all reported financial position, performance or
cashflow of the company.

15
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3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Company that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed using
value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

Key estimates - fair value of financial instruments

The Company has certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Where fair value has not
able to be determined based on quoted price, a valuation model has been used. The inputs to these models are
observable, where possible, however these techniques involve significant estimates and therefore fair value of the
instruments could be affected by changes in these assumptions and inputs.

Key estimates - revenue recognition

The company undertakes long term contracts which span a number of reporting periods. Recognition of revenue in
relation to these contracts involves estimation of future costs of completing the contract and the expected outcome of
the contract. The Assumptions are based on the information available to management at the reporting date, however
future changes or additional information may mean the expected revenue recognition pattern has to be amended.

Key estimates - receivables

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

4 Revenue and Other Income

2021

$

2020

$

Revenue

- Membership fees 35,888 11,409

- Grants 5,705,672 5,145,301

- Donations 133,081 15,889

5,874,641 5,172,599

Finance income

- Interest received 8,572 16,509

Total Revenue 5,883,213 5,189,108

Other Income

- Administration on projects 10,889 14,750

- Passport income - 137

- Conference income 89,705 -

- Training income 14,090 43,247

- Operational income 26,597 -

- Miscellaneous income 58,989 60,003

200,270 118,137

5 Result for the Year

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses

Consulting and professional fees 61,594 131,562

Rent 117,919 97,226

Resource development costs 378,823 178,781

Subcontracting costs 3,061,797 2,635,719

Capacity building and develoment &
training 178,520 122,752

6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank in hand 1,599,542 1,169,861

7 Trade and other receivables

CURRENT

Trade receivables 80,376 38,631

Other receivables - 2,709

80,376 41,340

8 Other assets

CURRENT

Prepayments 49,195 -
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9 Trade and other payables

2021

$

2020

$

CURRENT

Trade payables 73,005 103,769

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 35,822 339,575

PAYG Withholding 28,935 35,785

Superannuation payable 16,583 17,354

Other payables 3,320 1,531

157,665 498,014

10 Property, plant and equipment

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture and Equipment

At cost 53,731 64,699

Accumulated depreciation (41,561) (40,402)

Total furniture, fixtures and fittings 12,170 24,297

Improvements

Total property, plant and
equipment 12,170 24,297

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:

Furniture and
Equipment

$

Total

$

Year ended 30 June 2021

Balance at the beginning of year 24,297 24,297

Additions 13,010 13,010

Depreciation expense (25,137) (25,137)

Balance at the end of the year 12,170 12,170

11 Employee Benefits

2021

$

2020

$

CURRENT

Provision for annual leave 52,866 61,674

NON-CURRENT

Employee benefits 20,734 15,370
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

12 Other Financial Liabilities

2021

$

2020

$

CURRENT

Deferred government grants income 949,296 210,923

13 Tax

Current Tax Asset

GST receivable 100,106 34,000

14 Auditors' Remuneration

Remuneration of the auditor DFK
Laurence Varnay Auditors Pty Ltd,
for:

- auditing the financial statements 5,500 5,000

15 Key Management Personnel Disclosures

The totals of remuneration paid to the key management personnel of LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia during the year
are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 381,168 360,257

Post-employment benefits 35,512 33,936

416,680 394,193

16 Restricted Reserves

Restricted reserves are tied to particular purposes specified by donors or as identified at the time of public appeal; but
with no obligation or no capacity to return unspent funds to donors.

These funds were raised from the Australian public by LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia to effectively provide a national
voice to the ongoing conversations around LGBTIQPLUS health in Australia and to contribute to the Capacity
Development of its members to promote the health and wellbeing of LGBTIQPLUS Australians.

17 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2021 (30 June 2020:None).

18 Members' Guarantee

The Company is incorporated under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and is a
Company limited by guarantee. If the Company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to
contribute a maximum amount stipulated in Schedule 2 of the constitution. At 30 June 2021 the number of members
was 106 (2020: 94).
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19 Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

2021

$

2020

$

Surplus for the year 177,311 76,756

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to
operating activities

- depreciation - plant and machinery 25,137 18,454

- net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment - 59,558

Changes in assets and liabilities:

- (increase) in trade and other receivables (39,037) (41,119)

- (increase) in prepayments (49,195) -

 - increase/(decrease) in deferred income 738,373 (104,301)

- (increase) in GST refundable (66,106) (16,798)

- decrease in accrued income - 3,516

- (decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables (340,349) 195,011

- (decrease) in employee benefits (3,444) (17,027)

Cashflows from operations 442,690 174,050

20 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to create uncertainty in both local and global communities and economies, the
Company continues to consider the impact on its future operations and undertake appropriate measures and
precautions in response.

Except for the above, there have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the year.

21 Company Details

The registered office of and principal place of business of the
company is:

LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia

Level 3, 100 Harris Street

WeWork Pyrmont

NSW 2009
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Directors' Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 6 to 20 comply with the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Act 2012, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013 and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements and:

a. comply with Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures; and

b. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of the performance for the year ended on
that date of the Company.

2. In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Chair......................................................................

Carolyn Gillespie (VIC)

Treasurer ..................................................................

Evan O'Rourke

Dated this .............................. day of .............................. 2021

21
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Independent Audit Report to the members of LGBTIQPLUS Health
Australia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a general purpose - simplified disclosures financial report of
LGBTIQ Plus Health Australia (the Company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for
the year ended 30 June 2021, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and
the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report has been prepared in accordance with the  Australian Charities and Not-
for-Profits Commission Act 2012, in all material respects, including: 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position at 30 June 2021 and of their financial performance for the
year ended; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 . 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code)
that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Audit Report to the members of LGBTIQPLUS Health
Australia

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian
Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission Act 2001, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the management.
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Independent Audit Report to the members of LGBTIQPLUS Health
Australia

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial reporter, if

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the management with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the management, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

DFK Laurence Varnay Auditors Pty Ltd

Faizal Ajmat
Director

Sydney
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Disclaimer

The additional financial data presented on page 26 is in accordance with the books and records of the Company which
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our statutory audit of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2021.  It will be appreciated that our statutory audit did not cover all details of the additional financial data.  Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on such financial data and we give no warranty of accuracy or reliability in respect of the data
provided.  Neither the firm nor any member or employee of the firm undertakes responsibility in any way whatsoever to any
person (other than LGBTIQPLUS Health Australia) in respect of such data, including any errors or omissions therein
however caused.

DFK Laurence Varnay Auditors Pty Ltd

....................................................................

Faizal Ajmat, Director

Sydney
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Profit and Loss Account
2021

$

2020

$

Income

Operational income 26,597 -

Membership Fees 35,888 11,409

Interest income 8,572 16,509

Grants 5,705,672 5,145,301

Donations 133,083 15,891

Training income 14,091 43,247

Conference fees 159,581 74,889

Total income 6,083,484 5,307,246

Less: Expenses

Board expenses 25,218 45,705

Accounting and Auditing 85,162 99,278

Bad debts - 156

Bank charges 1,830 1,256

Website 8,417 44,191

Conference/seminar costs 23,617 1,753

Consulting and professional fees 61,594 131,562

Depreciation 25,137 18,454

Equipment < $300 11,087 3,068

Evaluation expenditure 55,444 10,000

Fees and permits 8,642 2,891

Insurance 11,031 10,114

IT Expenses 80,415 107,129

Rent 117,919 97,226

Leave pay (8,808) (8,924)

Long service leave 5,364 (8,103)

Operating expenses 3,535 61,304

Other employee costs 43,905 32,860

Postage 1,212 3,019

Printing and stationery 34,011 10,930

Promotion 10,749 41,043

Resource development costs 378,823 178,781

Salaries 1,356,412 1,245,483

Staff amenities 4,181 8,082

Subcontracting costs 3,061,797 2,635,719

General expenses 90,000 -

Superannuation contributions 124,982 113,937

Telephone and fax 86,550 42,701

Travel - domestic 18,848 114,934

Workers compensation insurance 579 3,980

Workshop expenses 178,520 122,752

Total Expenses 5,906,173 5,171,281

Other items:

Loss on disposal of assets - (59,209)

Surplus for the year 177,311 76,756
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